
PO Box 159 
242 Fredonia Avenue 
Fredonia, Wi 53021 
Phone: 262-692-9125 
Fax: 262-692-2883 

Administrator: 
cjenkins@village.fredonia.wi.us 

Clerk: 
mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us 

Treasurer: 
mdepies@village.fredonia.wi.us 

AGENDA 

FREDONIA ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL BOARD MEETING 
April 19, 2023 6:00PM 

Fredonia Government Center - Board Room 
242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 

THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS WILL BE BEFORE THE VILLAGE BOARD 
 FOR INITIATION, DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION, DELIBERATION 

 AND POSSIBLE FORMAL ACTION 

1. Call to order

2. Motion to Approve minutes of November 16, 2022 Architectural Control 

Board meeting.

3. Motion to Approve siding project for Precision Floor & Décor, located at 200 
Highland Dr.

4. Adjournment 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this 
service, contact the Village Clerk at (262) 692-9125. 

VIEW/ATTEND MEETING VIA ZOOM 

The Village of Fredonia will be utilizing ZOOM as a part of the Village Board meetings. All 
meetings will adhere to Wisconsin Open Meetings Laws and follow guidance provided by the WI 
Department of Justice. The public is able to attend public meetings in person. ZOOM is 
intended to provide an additional option for the public to join the meeting via computer, iPad, 
tablet, or telephone. 

We ask that you have your microphone muted. The Village reserves the right to mute disruptive 
attendees. 

The Village President will recognize anyone wishing to speak at the appropriate time and ask 
you to make your comments. 

To have the link sent to you, please contact the Village Clerk at: 
mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us  

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
~Ind Your Momen Here 

mailto:cjenkins@village.fredonia.wi.us
mailto:mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us
mailto:mdepies@village.fredonia.wi.us
mailto:mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us


 

Emailed to village trustees, committee members, papers, and Friends of Fredonia on 4/11/2023 
Posted at Port Washington State Bank, Fredonia Post Office, and Village Hall on 4/11/2023 

 
Michelle Johnson is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: Architectural Control Board 
Time: Apr 19, 2023 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86442548091 
 
Meeting ID: 864 4254 8091 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,86442548091# US (Chicago) 
+16469313860,,86442548091# US 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 305 224 1968 US 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 360 209 5623 US 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
        +1 507 473 4847 US 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
        +1 669 444 9171 US 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 689 278 1000 US 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 205 0468 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 864 4254 8091 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kGLf02mpR 
 



1 | P a g e  A r c h i t e c t u r a l  C o n t r o l  B o a r d  1 1 / 1 6 / 2 2  
 
 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 16, 2022 
 
The Architectural Control Board meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair John 
Long.  
 
Board members present: John Long, Jessica Franck, Bob Lallensack, Damon Ward, 
and Tom Miller. 
 
Others present: Jacob Winker, Shawn and Sarah McMullen, Mark Gibb, Edward Fisher-
Concept One, and Jerry Jacque.  
 
Approve Minutes 

Motion by Tom Miller, seconded by Jessica Franck, to approve the September 
21, 2022 Architectural Control Board meeting minutes as presented. Motion 
carried. 
 

Motion to approve installation of a fence at 202 Fox Glen Road; request from 
Jacob Winker 
Trustee Long stated that there is a utility box on the northeast corner of this lot, which 
means there would be a utility easement. It was noted that Mr. Winker was aware of the 
easement and has received a letter of We Energies authorizing the construction of the 
fence with conditions. 
 
Trustee Long also noted that there is a shed on the corner of this lot, which is located 
near the utility box. Mr. Winker stated that the fence will connect to the shed on the two 
sides and will act as the corner. 
 
Mr. Winker stated that he has had the area hotlined to do the planning and design and 
the fence will be 10 feet from the utility box as required by We Energies. 
 

Motion by Bob Lallensack, seconded by Damon Ward, to approve installation of 
a fence at 202 Fox Glen Road contingent that the fence meets the 10 foot set 
back from the We Energies utility box. Motion carried. 

 
Motion to approve family room and two bedroom addition to the home at 445 
Emerald Hills Drive; request from Shawn McMullen 
Trustee Long stated that the property is zoned RS2 which would require a 12 foot side 
yard setback. Mr. and Mrs. McMullen provided a Plat of Survey that shows the location 
of the existing home with the addition added and a measurement line showing that the 
side yard setback would be approximately 14 feet. 
 
The board member reviewed the plans presented. Mr. McMullen stated that the siding 
and window style will match the exiting home. 
 



2 | P a g e  A r c h i t e c t u r a l  C o n t r o l  B o a r d  1 1 / 1 6 / 2 2  
 
 

 
 

Motion by Tom Miller, seconded by Bob Lallensack, to approve a family room 
and two bedroom addition to the home at 445 Emerald Hills Drive as submitted. 
Motion carried. 

 
Motion to approve construction of new home at 217 Wilson Street; request from 
Aspen Homes-Mark Gibb 
Trustee Long indicated that this is the property where the house burned down. He noted 
that the basement walls would need an inspection to ensure they are structurally safe. 
 
Mr. Gibb stated that the existing foundation will removed; they will be pouring all new 
footings, foundation, and walls. The basement walls will be 9 foot poured concrete. 
 
Trustee Long sated that this property is zoned RS1 which requires a 15 foot side yard 
setback. It does appear that this home will meet that requirement. 
 
Tom Miller questioned the status of the sewer and water laterals. Mr. Gibb stated that 
they will be putting in all new laterals and underground power as well. 
 
Trustee Long stated that in the past the Village Engineer would review new home 
construction to ensure that storm water drainage would not be an issue for neighboring 
properties. The Village no longer has an engineer therefore he recommended 
contracting out engineer review to ensure storm water drainage is adequate. 
 
Damon Ward questioned if the height elevation of the new home would be the same as 
the previous home. Mr. Gibb stated that the exact height is unknown at this time; the 
height will be determined by the sewer and water laterals. It is his preference to have 
the home where is previously was; however it may be adjusted slightly. 
 

Motion by Damon Ward, seconded by Jessica Franck, to approve construction of 
new home at 217 Wilson Street as submitted contingent that new footing and 
foundation will be poured, the top of foundation will match the existing top of 
foundation, and engineer review and approval of yard elevations. Motion carried. 
 

Motion to approve Dollar General at 111 Fredonia Avenue 
Edward Fisher-Architect for Dollar General stated that this store will be 9,100 square 
feet with a corner entrance. The building will be 70 feet by 130 feet, it is a beige metal 
building that will have split face concrete block on the front painted to match the color of 
the metal. The north and east walls will have a dark brown metal banner with the store 
sign. 
 
Tom Miller questioned if the existing building will be completely demolished. Mr. Fisher 
stated that yes everything will be removed including the basement, which will need to be 
filled in. 
 



3 | P a g e  A r c h i t e c t u r a l  C o n t r o l  B o a r d  1 1 / 1 6 / 2 2  
 
 

Bob Lallensack questioned if the building meets the required 25 foot setback. After 
review of the plans, it was determined that the setback requirements were met. 
 
Tom Miller questioned where the roof drains to. The roof will drain into a storm pipe and 
discharge the water toward the highway ditch. 
 
The plans were reviewed and discussed. Discussion included questions regarding 
building elevation, dumpster location and enclosures. Mr. Fisher stated that the plans 
show the dumpster enclosure made of brick; however they will not be brick they will be 
a shadowbox fence.  It was also noted that the building does not meet the Village 
standard for metal buildings; however the two sides of the building that are all metal will 
be hidden by the hill, a fence and landscaping. The two sides that are most visible will 
have the split face concrete block and dark brown banner. 
 
Trustee Long stated that the north wall which faces Fredonia Avenue only has the dark 
brown banner about 10 feet of the wall; it was suggested that the dark brown banner be 
extended the entire length of the building.  
 
The landscape plans does call for a fence on the west side of the property to shield the 
neighboring property. This was satisfactory to the property owner. 
 

Motion by Jessica Franck, seconded by Damon Ward, to approve the Dollar 
General Store at 111 Fredonia Avenue to include the dark brown banner the 
entire length of the north side of the building, and having the dumpster 
enclosures be constructed of shadowbox fencing. Motion carried. 

 
Items for Future Consideration by the Village Board 
Bob Lallensack stated that repairs need to be done to the St. Rose steeple, and due to 
the height of the project they will be utilizing a crane. He questioned if the church would 
need to obtain a special permit. The crane will be on the church property only. It was 
determined that no permits were necessary for the project. 
 
Tom Miller questioned how many lots were available in the Village. There was 
discussion on the Hillcrest development on the north side of the Village stating that 
there are at least 70 lots available in this subdivision. It was also noted that Lundman 
Development has approximately 20 lots, however due to the ground water issue they 
have been taken off the market. 
 
Tom Miller questioned when the road will be done into the subdivision and what the 
length of time was that the developer had to complete this. Trustee Long stated that the 
Village does not have a timeframe and does not have a way to force this. 
 
Adjourn 

Motion by Bob Lallensack, seconded by Jessica Franck, to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:17 p.m. Motion carried. 



CamScanner

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find You r Moment s H e rc-

Owner's Name 

Site Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

Email 

Contractor's Name 

Address 

Phone Number 

Email 

License/Certification Number 

Types of Buildings 

Commercial Building Permit 
Application 

Roger Kison, Commercial Building Inspector 
(262) 375-1349 

242 Fredonia Ave 
PO Box 159 

Fredonia, Wisconsin 53021 
(262) 692-9125 

https:/ /www.fredoniawi.gov/ 

Owner's Information 

Contractor's Information 

Project Type 
Other Units 

/ / 

Date Received ~7ld/w'Z-3 
\ I 

Permit Number 

<J>~, U-0 
Total Fee -
Arch Board Final 

Approval Inspection 

Miscellaneous 
Local Business, Office Buildings, or Signs Demolition/ Razing 

Additions Sidewalk & Driveway Erosion Control 
Manufacturing, Institutional, or House Numbers Industrial and Commercial Water/ 

Industrial Roofing Sewer Hookup 
Apartments or Multi-Family Occupancy Permit-Final 
Local Business, Office Buildings, or Plan Review Special inspections, Letters & 

Additions Alterations Plan Review: Commercial new Reports 
Manufacturing, Institutional, or construction Re-Inspection 

Industrial Alterations Plan Review: Commercial alterations Resubmission or Previously 
Apartments or Multi-Family Alterations Property Record Maintenance Approved Plan 

(~~frvnv 
Failure to Obtain Permit 
Failure to Call For Required 

Inspections 
Work Not Ready For Inspection 

.. Cautionary Statement to Owner Obtaining Permit 
101.65(1r) of the Wisconsin Statutes requires municipalities that enforce the WI State Commercial Code to provide an owner who applies for a building permit with a 

statement advising the owner that: If the owner hires a contractor to perform work under the building permit and the contractor Is not bonded or Insured as required 
under s.101.6S4(2)(a), the following consequences might occur: (a) The owner may be held liable for any bodily injury to or death of others or for any damage to the 
property of others that arises out of the work performed under the building permit or that is caused by a negligence of the contractor that occurs in connection with 
the work performed under the building permit. (b) The owner may not be able to collect from the contractor damages for any loss sustained by the owner because of 
a violation by the contractor of the WI State Commercial Code or an ordinance enacted under sub.(l)(a) because of any bodily injury or death of others or damage to 

the property of others that arises out of the work performed under the building permit or because of any bodily Injury to or death of others or damage to the 
property of others that Is caused by any negligence by the contractor that occurs In connection w ith the work performed under the building permit. It is hereby 

agreed between the undersigned and the Village of Fredonia that all work performed as herein described, according to the plans and specifications herewith 
presented, shall be completed In strict compliance with the ordinances of the VIiiage of Fredonia and all the laws of the State of Wisconsin. By signing this permit 

application, It Is understood that a contract exists between the owner and the Village of Fredonia and guarantees the right to enter for the required inspections and 
lnvestl tlons. Applic t Is obligated to ensure final Inspection Is made. 

Applicant Signature: Date: 

Village Rep Signature: Date: 

https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download


C
am

Sc
an

ne
r

New Window 

DiagramSca/e=l/4 P3 - Powered by Measure Square:{ 

Existing Entrance 

Staying 
New Window 

D/agramScale=l/4 P3 - Powered by Measure Square.\ 

https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

